AGENDA
Committee

-

COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING
AUTHORITY

Date & Time

-

Tuesday, 22 April 2014 at 6.35 pm or
immediately following the conclusion of the
Licensing Committee whichever is the later.

Venue

-

Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road,
Spalding

Membership of the Committee of the Licensing Authority:
Councillors: F Biggadike (Vice-Chairman), A Casson, M G Chandler (Chairman),
P E Coupland, G K Dark, C J Lawton, D J Wilkinson, R J H Creese, R M Rudkin and
R Perkins

Persons attending the meeting are
requested to turn mobile telephones to silent
mode

Member Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE
Date: 10 April 2014
Please ask for Shelley French: Telephone 01775 764451
e-mail: sfrench@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA
1.

Apologies for absence.

2.

Declaration of interests:
(Members are no longer required to declare personal of prejudicial
interests but are to declare any new Disclosable Pecuniary Interests that
are not currently included in their Register of Interests.
Members are reminded that under the Code of Conduct they are not to
participate in the whole of an agenda item to which they have a
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest. In the interests of transparency,
members may also wish to declare any other interests that they have, in
relation to an agenda item, that supports the Nolan principles detailed
within the Code of Conduct.)

3.

Minutes:

(Pages
1 - 2)

To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 19
November 2013 (enclosed).
4.

A consultation on fees under The Licensing Act 2003:

(Pages
3 - 60)

The Committee of the Licensing Authority are asked to note the Home
Office consultation and the response returned to the Home Office
(Report of the Assistant Director of Commissioning enclosed).
5.

The Introduction of a code of practice for Off Licences in South Holland:
The Committee of the Licensing Authority are asked to note the contents
of the proposed document entitled Safer Spalding, Code Of Good
Practice for Off Licensed Retailers (Report of the Assistant Director of
Commissioning enclosed).

6.

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. NOTE:

No other business is permitted unless by reason of special
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be
considered as a matter of urgency.

(Pages
61 - 82)

-3-

Agenda Item 3.

Minutes of a meeting of the COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING AUTHORITY held in
the Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 19
November 2013 at 7.34 pm.
PRESENT
M G Chandler (Chairman)
F Biggadike (Vice-Chairman)
A Casson
G K Dark

C J Lawton
D J Wilkinson

The Public Protection Manager and Licensing Manager, Member Services Support
Officer and Mr D Naghen (Maples Solicitors)
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors P E Coupland,
R J H Creese, R M Rudkin and R Perkins

4.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
There were none.

5.

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 4 June 2013 were signed by the Chairman as a
correct record.

6.

ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT.
There were none.
(The meeting ended at 7.36 pm)
(End of minutes)

Page 1

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 2

Agenda Item 4.
SOUTH HOLLAND COUNCIL
Report of:

The Assistant Director of Commissioning

To:

Committee of the Licensing Authority – 22 April 2014

Author:

Rowland W Wilson – Licensing Manager

Subject:

A consultation on fees under The Licensing Act 2003

Purpose:

The Committee of the Licensing Authority are asked to note the Home Office
consultation and the response returned to the Home Office.

Recommendation:
To note the formal response sent to the Home Office providing answers to the questions posed
within the consultation, and that this is the response from South Holland Council.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The Government is committed to cutting red tape within the licensing regime for responsible
businesses. They have recently reduced regulation on live music and have also brought
forward additional proposals for further deregulation of entertainment, and removing burdens
on late night refreshment providers as well as reducing the burden of the personal licence
holder.

1.2

The Government are also very clear in its commitment to curbing excessive drinking and the
related problems this causes, especially alcohol related crime and disorder which costs
around £11 billion each year in England and Wales. The Government have legislated to
rebalance the Act in favour of local communities, ensuring that local Councils have significant
powers with the introduction of legislation relating to the late night levy and early morning
alcohol restriction zones.

1.3

As part of the Governments proposals to rebalance the Act, they have recognised that some
Licensing Authorities face significant deficits in carrying out the licensing function as the fee
levels have remained unchanged since the implementation of the Act in 2005. The current fee
regulations prescribe different fee amounts for grants, variations, and annual fees, which are
set in bands depending on the non domestic rateable value of a premises.

1.4

The Government introduced provisions in the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 to
enable local set fees based on cost recovery. The Government decided not to continue to set
fees centrally as they recognised costs can vary and could result in fee payers paying too
much in certain areas.

1.5

The proposed locally set fees cannot be used to raise extra revenue, or tackle crime, but shall
be based on recovering the costs that an authority incurs carrying out the licensing function. It
is important that fee payers can be clear that locally set fees are set transparently and based
on a cost recovery basis.

1.6

The government intention is not to impose excessive duties or complex processes that would
increase the costs of the licensing system, so they are seeking views on how to create a
proportionate system of fees. They will however introduce caps on levels of each fee.

1.7

The consultation on fees ran between 13 February 2014 and 10 April 2014 and a copy of the
document is attached at Appendix A.

Page 3

1.8

The consultation proposes variable fee amounts that licensing authorities may be able to
apply for the main fees if they choose to move away from the use of the non domestic
rateable value.

1.9

The full cost to the Council of issuing any particular licence is still to be determined, but will be
carried out fully prior to any proposal of any new fee structure, following further guidance from
the Home Office. This will then allow the Council to recover the full cost of dealing with the
Licensing Act 2003.

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

The Licensing Committee are asked to note the response sent

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

To inform members of the response to the consultation.

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

N/A

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications

5.2

Constitution & Legal

5.2.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.3

Contracts

5.3.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.4

Corporate Priorities

5.4.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.5

Crime and Disorder

5.5.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.6

Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.7

Financial

5.7.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.8

Risk Management

5.8.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

Page 4

5.9

Staffing

5.9.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.10

Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.
6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

All

7.0

ACRONYMS

7.1

None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Rowland W Wilson – Licensing Manager
Telephone Number: 01362 656893
Email:
licensingteam@breckland-sholland.gov.uk
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post:

Rowland W Wilson – Licensing Manager

Key Decision:

No

Exempt Decision:

No

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A
Appendix B

A Consultation on fees under the Licensing Act 2003 (Home Office)
Proposed Consultation Response

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6

Page 7

Page 8

Page 9

Page 10

Page 11

Page 12

Page 13

Page 14

Page 15

Page 16

Page 17

Page 18

Page 19

Page 20

Page 21

Page 22

Page 23

Page 24

Page 25

Page 26

Page 27

Page 28

Page 29

Page 30

Page 31

Page 32

Page 33

Page 34

Page 35

Page 36

Page 37

Page 38

Page 39

Page 40

Page 41

Page 42

Page 43

Page 44

Page 45

Page 46

Page 47

Page 48

Page 49

Page 50

Page 51

Page 52

Page 53

Page 54

APPENDIX B
Proposed Consultation Response
Consultation Question 1:
Do you agree or disagree that the use of National Non-domestic Rateable Value
bands as a criterion for variable fee amounts should be abandoned?
Agree Disagree Don't know
Consultation Question 2:
If you disagree, please provide evidence that higher National Non-domestic Rateable
Value is consistently linked to higher average costs to the licensing authority within
individual licensing authority areas, keeping your views to a maximum of 200 words.
Consultation Question 3:
Do you agree or disagree that the criterion of whether or not a premises is authorised
to provide licensable activities to a late terminal hour is linked to costs?
Agree Disagree Don't know
Consultation Question 4:
If you agree, please provide evidence for your answer in the box below, keeping your
views to a maximum of 200 words.
Additional costs are incurred due to enforcement work, which includes late night
inspections, dealing with noise and anti social behaviour complaints .Additional costs
are also incurred during a premises licence application process for a late night hour,
through receipt of representations, mediation / hearings.
Consultation Question 5:
Do you agree or disagree that the criterion of whether or not a premises is authorised
to provide licensable activities to a late terminal hour is sufficiently practical to
implement?
Agree Disagree Don't know
Consultation Question 6:
If you do not agree, please state your reasons in the box below, keeping your views
to a maximum of 200 words.
Consultation Question 7:
Do you agree or disagree that the licensing authority should be able to determine the
hours during which the higher fee is payable within the boundaries of midnight to
6am?
Agree Disagree Don't know
Consultation Question 8:
If you disagree, please state the hours during which you think licensing authorities
should be able to determine that a higher fee is payable.
23.00 hours is a more appropriate time as it corresponds to the public view, previous
terminal hour as recognised by the public, and to tie in with noise nuisance
legislation.

Page 55

Consultation Question 9:
Do you agree or disagree that licensing authorities that impose higher fees for
premises which open later should have discretion to exclude premises that are
authorised to open late only on certain nights per year?
Agree Disagree Don't know
Consultation Question 10:
Please state your reasons, keeping your views to a maximum of 200 words.
Licensing Authorities should be able to determine what premises should be excluded,
for example premises that are authorised to open late only on certain nights of the
year, for example Bank Holidays or New Years Eve.
Consultation Question 11:
Do you agree or disagree that the criterion of whether or not a premises is used
primarily for the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises is linked to costs?
Agree Disagree Don't know
Consultation Question 12:
Please provide evidence for your answer in the box below, keeping your views to a
maximum of 200 words.
Costs are more linked to late terminal hour, and other activities such as
entertainment and off sales
Consultation Question 13:
Do you agree or disagree that the criterion of whether or not premises are exclusively
or primarily used for the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises is
sufficiently practical to implement?
Agree Disagree Don't know
Consultation Question 14:
If you do not agree, please state your reasons in the box below, keeping your views
to a maximum of 200 words.
It is difficult to define ‘exclusively or primarily’ and could lead to costly disputes. For
example defining whether a petrol station should be licensed for the sale of alcohol
can currently be problematic.
Consultation Question 15:
Do you agree or disagree that there should be discretion to apply higher fee amounts
only where both criteria apply in combination?
Agree Disagree Don't know
Consultation Question 16:
Do you agree or disagree that, if a licensing authority has determined that different
fee amounts should apply, it should have discretion to exclude certain types of
premises from that higher fee amount?
Agree Disagree Don't know

Page 56

Consultation Question 17:
If discretion to exclude certain types of premises from a higher fee amount were
available, what types of premises should be specified in the regulations as potentially
excluded classes? Please give reasons for your answer, keeping your views to a
maximum of 200 words.
Premise providing overnight accommodation, where the alcohol is supplied to
residents only, for consumption on the premises, Theatres, where alcohol is supplied
to ticket holders in relation to a relevant production at the premises or people
concerned in the performance only, Cinemas, where alcohol is supplied to ticket
holders in relation to the exhibition of a film at the premises only, and for example
Bingo Halls

Page 57

Consultation Question 18:
Are there alternative options that should be available to licensing authorities to apply
different fee amounts in their area? Please specify and set out your evidence in the
box below, keeping your views to a maximum of 200 words.
Premises that are located in special policy areas, cumulative impact areas/zones, as
these premises within these areas are usually used exclusively or primarily for the
consumption of alcohol and the provision of late night regulated entertainment. More
enforcement work is carried out in these areas by licensing authorities.
Consultation Question 19:
Do you agree or disagree that the proposed cap levels will enable your licensing
authority to recover costs?
Agree Disagree Don't know
Consultation Question 20:
Do you have any other comments on the proposed cap levels? Please specify them
in the box below, keeping your views to a maximum of 200 words.
Consultation Question 21: (TEN)
Do you agree or disagree that the proposed cap of £100 will enable your licensing
authority to recover costs?
Agree Disagree Don't know
Consultation Question 22:
Please set evidence for your answer in the box below, keeping your views to a
maximum of 200 words.
The number of TEN that are determined at sub committee hearings is minimal.
Applicants are usually willing to work with responsible authorities regarding their
concerns.
Consultation Question 23:
Do you agree or disagree that licensing authorities be required, before locally-set
fees are implemented, to:23a: publish their proposed fee levels?;
Agree Disagree Don't know
23b: publish the basis on which they have been calculated?
Agree Disagree Don't know
23c: publish the measures they have taken to keep costs down?
Agree Disagree Don't know
23d: invite comments from interested parties?
Agree Disagree Don't know
Consultation Question 24:

Page 58

What practical steps can licensing authorities take to secure efficiency? Please state
and give reasons for your answer in the box below, keeping your views to a
maximum of 200 words.

Page 59

Increase electronic communication with applicants and licence holders. Continue with
targeted and proportionate enforcement.
Consultation Question 25:
Do you agree or disagree that the Guidance should suggest that these areas present
a particular risk of excessive costs or gold-plating?
Agree Disagree Don't know
25a: Notification of residents individually of licensing applications in their area by
letter (given that the existing duties to advertise on the premises and on the licensing
authorities’ website enable the involvement of local residents, and that more cost
efficient methods of further engagement may be available);
Agree Disagree Don't know
25b: Central re-charges, such as payments from the licensing budget to legal
services or external communications. These should relate to costs actually incurred
in the delivery of functions under the 2003 Act and not, for example, a standard
percentage of central costs.
Agree Disagree Don't know
25c: The costs of discharging the statutory functions of licensing authorities that arise
under other legislation, such as the duties arising under the Environmental Protection
Act 1990.
Agree Disagree Don't know
Consultation Question 26:
Do you think that there are other activities that may present a particular risk of
excessive costs or gold-plating? Please state and give reasons for your answer in the
box below, keeping your views to a maximum of 200 words.
General advice and guidance on Licensing Act 2003 applications
Consultation Question 27:
Do you agree or disagree that there should be a single national payment date for
annual fees in England and Wales?
Agree Disagree Don't know
Consultation Question 28:
Do you think that the Impact Assessments related to the consultation provide an
accurate representation of the costs and benefits of the proposal to move to locallyset fees (including, in particular, the costs of setting fees locally)?
Agree Disagree Don't know
Consultation Question 29:
Do you have any comments on the methodologies or assumptions used in the impact
assessment? If so, please detail them in the box below, referencing the page in the
impact assessment to which you refer. Please keep your views to a maximum of 200
words.
None

Page 60

Agenda Item 5.
SOUTH HOLLAND COUNCIL
Report of:

The Assistant Director of Commissioning

To:

Committee of the Licensing Authority – 22 April 2014

Author:

Rowland W Wilson – Licensing Manager

Subject:

The Introduction of a code of practice for Off Licences in South Holland

Purpose:

The Licensing Committee are asked to note the contents of the proposed
document entitled Safer Spalding, Code of Good Practice For Off Licensed
Retailers.

Recommendation:
The Licensing Committee are asked to approve the use of the proposed document entitled
Safer Spalding, Code Of Good Practice For Off Licensed Retailers.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The background to this proposed new code of pratice for off licences arose as a result of
discussions into the introduction of a Cumulative Impact area in Spalding which for varying
reasons did not proceed.

1.2

The Safer Spalding Project is a partnership between South Holland District Council Licensing
and Communnity Safety, Lincolnshire Police Community and County Licensing team,
Lincolnshire Trading Standards, and the Spalding branch of Lincolnshire Chamber of
Commerce. It has been a group formulated to assist with the issues around street drinking
and underage sales initially within the town centre of Spalding.

1.3

The proposed initial plan is to introduce this document as a voluntary code of good practice
for all off licences within the current DPPO which covers Spalding town centre (map included
within the code). A DPPO (Designated Public Place Order ) gives Police officers
discretionary powers to require a person to stop drinking and confiscate alcohol or containers
of alcohol in public places.

1.4

Should this initiative prove to be a valuable tool to support the licensing objectives, ie, Crime
and disorder, public nuisance, public safety, and protection of children from harm, then this
would be a good reason for it to be then expanded to all off licences within Spalding with a
view to eventually including this to all off licences within South Holland District Council.

1.5

A number of the aspects within the proposed code, are currently being used effectively in
other Authorities, and if we can gain widespread acceptance within the DPPO it will be a
valuable guide should any off licence within the area fall fowl of the principles, the relevant
parts may legitimately be added as conditions to an offending premises by way of either a
minor variation or following a review of a premises licence.

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

The Committee of the Licensing Authority are asked to approve the document to be used as
a working document for future use with South Holland District Council.

Page 61

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION
The code is intended as a voluntary sign up to assist licensees rather than to act as a stick,
with the added aim of improving the retail skills and operation levels of some of the lesser
efficient retailers, the main aim being educational rather than legislative.

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

N/A

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications

5.2

Constitution & Legal

5.2.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.3

Contracts

5.3.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.4

Corporate Priorities

5.4.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.5

Crime and Disorder

5.5.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.6

Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.7

Financial

5.7.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no current implications.

5.8

Risk Management

5.8.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.9

Staffing

5.9.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.10

Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.
6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

All

Page 62

7.0

ACRONYMS

7.1

DPPO – Designated Public Place Order

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Rowland W Wilson – Licensing Manager
Telephone Number: 01362 656893
Email:
licensingteam@breckland-sholland.gov.uk
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post:

Rowland W Wilson – Licensing Manager

Key Decision:

No

Exempt Decision:

No

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A – Safer Spalding – Code of good pratice for off licensed retailers.

Page 63

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64

SAFER SPALDING
Code of Good Practice
for

Off Licence Retailers
In partnership with

South Holland District Council

Lincolnshire Police
Lincolnshire Trading
Standards

Lincolnshire Chamber of
Trade Business Watch
Page 65
Page 1

Contents
1 Introduction
2 Background
3 Purpose
3.1 What can the partners offer retailers?
3.2 Guidance
3.3 Code and the Law
3.4 Voluntary code
4. Sale of Age Restricted Products
4.1 Proof of age scheme
4.2 Refusal to serve and incident record
5 Responsible Staffing
5.1Designated Premises Supervisor
5.2 Staff Training
5.3 Personal Licence Holder
6 Business Watch and Town Centre Management
6.1 Spalding Business Watch
6.2 Radio scheme
6.3 Reporting
6.4 Regular meetings
6.5 Working together
6.6 Town centre management
7 Preventative Measures
7.1 Intruder alarms
7.2 CCTV Systems
8 Responsible Retailing
8.1 Single Can Policy
8.2 Reducing the Strength
8.3 Identify products from your shop
9 Shop Front Guidance
9.1 What do we want to see
9.2 Signage
9.3 What should I do if I want to change my shop front or signage?
9.4 Do’s and Don’ts
9.5 Pride in the Community
9.6 Parking
10 Appendices
Appendix I Age restricted Products
Appendix II Useful Websites
Appendix III Map of Spalding DPPO Area
Appendix IV Code of Good Practice Agreement

Page 66
Page 2

1.Introduction
1.1 South Holland District Council, Lincolnshire Police, Lincolnshire Trading Standards and other
agencies are working together to tackle Anti Social Behaviour associated with alcohol abuse.
1.2 Lincolnshire Chamber Business Watch is a scheme designed to reduce crime and disorder in
the retail trade, in public houses, clubs and other businesses. It endeavours to make the
shopping experience and social aspect of the night time economy more desirable to staff and
customers/patrons alike. It complements this Code of Good Practice and underpins its
purpose.
1.3 The Code is designed to support and improve the feelings of safety within the community and
to encourage viable business growth and adding to the general high standards of the
community as a whole.
1.4 To improve the general appearance of the shopping environment, adding and fostering pride
in the community.
1.5 The Code shows how retailers working together with partners from the various authorities
can support the licensing objectives.

2 Background
2.1 This Code outlines sound retail principles particularly with regard to alcohol retailing with the
aim of supporting the four licensing objectives with particular regard to off licence retailers
The prevention of crime and disorder
Public Safety
The prevention of Public Nuisance
The protection of children from harm
2.2 Encouraging all involved in alcohol retailing to work together constructively to promote a safe
and comfortable community environment.
2.3 Reducing risks within the community by providing a
guide on responsible alcohol retailing with the
reduction of the “fear factor” within the community
2.4 It is hoped that by adopting this Code it will assist
even the most experienced retailers with the reduction
of crime and disorder and anti social behaviour,
fuelled by street drinking and to assist with providing
professionally trained and equipped staff.

Page 67
Page 3

3 Purpose
3.1 The objective of the Code is to provide a
comprehensive guide for the responsible
management of off-licence premises, and to
assist such premises with the understanding of
their legal obligations and responsibilities in
respect of the Retail Sales of Alcohol and other
restricted products.
3.2 The code offers guidance to retailers on best
practice and staff training.
It is not intended to conflict with any aspect of a
company’s corporate or national policy.
3.3 Nothing in this Code should be taken as indicating that any requirement of licensing law or
any other law may be overridden. The Code is intended to explain in part the legal
obligations associated with the sale of alcohol and where necessary appropriate legal advice
and training should be sought.
3.4 This is a voluntary code for consideration by licensees. It is offered as a good practice guide
giving the opportunity for premises to operate at the highest level of responsibility and alcohol
retailing expertise

4 Sale of Age Restricted Products
4.1

Proof of age scheme
It is a mandatory condition of the Licensing Act 2003 for a Premises Licence Holder to
ensure that an age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or
supply of alcohol.

4.1.2 The premise licence holder must ensure the premise has a written age verification policy.
4.1.3 The premise licence holder must ensure that staff who are involved with the supply of
alcohol are made aware of the existence and content of the age verification policy applied
by the premises.
4.1.4 A Challenge 21 or 25 Proof of Age scheme will be operated. Challenge 25 is preferred.
Any person attempting to purchase alcohol who appears to be under the age of 25 years
will be asked for an accredited form of proof of age. Failure to produce satisfactory proof
of age will result in the sale being refused.
4.1.5 The accredited forms of proof of age that this premise will accept are:
PASS-accredited proof of age card, photo driving licence or passport.

Page 68
Page 4

4.1.6 Clear, prominent and unobstructed signage informing customers of the Challenge 25
scheme will be clearly displayed. Appropriate signage and posters can be obtained from
Lincolnshire Trading Standards.

4.1.7 There are a number of other products which you may sell which are age restricted,
cigarettes and tobacco products all of these should be included within your age verification
policy. There is a list of products of age restricted products at appendix I
4.2

Refusal to serve and refusal register

4.2.1 Premises will keep a Refusal Register. This should be
kept up to date and an entry made each time a customer
is asked for proof of age or where a sale of alcohol or an
age restricted product is refused.
4.2.2 The record should be completed by the employee dealing
with the matter and as soon after the event as possible.
The following details should be recorded
• Date of incident
• Time
• Product requested
• Member of staff and Staff signature
• Description of customer
• Reason for refusal e.g. No ID
• Any additional information
• Police called in cases of aggression ASB threat or
violence
• Business Watch network used to relay details
4.2.3 The Premise Licence holder or Designated Premise Supervisor will review and signoff the
refusal register on a fortnightly basis.
4.2.4 Where a shop is a member of BUSINESS WATCH it may be appropriate to use the radio
provided to inform other shops of the incident
4.2.5 Descriptions of person refused sales should be passed immediately to the CCTV control
room. This should be via radio (if a BUSINESS WATCH member) or by telephone.
4.2.6 A blank refusal register are available from Trading Standards. However a diary or any
other bounded document that includes the information noted in 4.2.2 is sufficient.
4.2.7 Trading Standards recommend all of these records are retained on the premises for a
minimum of 2 years

Page 69
Page 5

5 Responsible staffing
5.1

Designated Premises Supervisor
In every premises where a Premises Licence has been
granted authorising the retail sale of alcohol a member of
staff who holds a Personal Licence is required to be
appointed by the Premises Licence Holder as the
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS). The DPS is the
person who is responsible for the daily operation of the
business in respect of the retail sale of alcohol and is
required to understand the role and the responsibilities of
the position. The DPS is the single point of contact
between the business and the authorities.

5.1.1 In conjunction with the Premises Licence Holder, the
DPS carries the responsibility to ensure that the
requirements of the Licencing Act 2003 are adhered to.
The DPS has the responsibility to make and authorise the
sale of all alcohol supplied from the premises including
authorising other members of staff to sell alcohol.l
5.1.2 It is recommended that every premises has a list of all staff authorised to sell or supply
alcohol which should be signed by the members of staff and the DPS.
5.2

Staff Training
All members of staff will be trained in the legal requirements of their responsibilities and
understand the requirements of the premises licence and any conditions which apply. Staff
should be aware of the permitted trading hours and the hours during which alcohol may be
sold or supplied

5.2.1 Keep a written record of all staff training with details of the subject and the date of training.
This should be signed by the member of staff and the trainer. Trading Standards can
provide this paperwork.
5.2.2 Training into the responsibility for the sales of age restricted products should be carried
out every six months along with refresher training on the requirements of the Premises
Licence.
5.2.3 Staff will be made aware of alcohol proxy purchasing and the consequences. All staff will
be trained to be vigilant regarding proxy purchasing and how to deal with a situation if it
occurs.
5.2.4 All documentation regarding staff training will be available for inspection by a responsible
authority at their request and must be retained for a minimum period of 2 years.

Page 70
Page 6

5.3

Personal Licence Holders
The Licensing Act 2003 requires that there shall be a
DPS who is a personal licence holder at the premises.
There can be only one DPS, however, as the DPS
cannot generally be at the premises for the whole time
during trading hours. It is recommended as good
practice for premises to have more than one personal
licence holder to be on duty in the absence of the DPS

5.4 Staff rotas
Throughout the trading week the volume of customers at the premises will vary. It is
recommended that full recognition is taken of the peak times to allow for staff to be on duty
to deal with the volume of trade and for security reason. It is recommended that premises
keep and maintain a staff rota to manage these issues

6. Business Watch and Town Centre Management
6.1 Spalding Business Watch, established and supported by Lincolnshire Chamber of
Commerce, has a local membership of nearly 30 businesses.
This membership includes a number of retail outlets licensed to supply alcohol and pubs
and clubs.
6.2 Spalding Business Watch aims to make the licensing environment safe for its employees
and pleasurable for its patrons and customers
Members are encouraged to lease radios from the scheme to aid communication with the
local policing team, CCTV control centre and importantly to one another.
6.3 Through the scheme members are urged to report alcohol related crime and anti-social
behaviour to the local coordinator who then considers a period of exclusion for the culprit
from member premises for a defined period of time
6.4 In addition regular member meetings are held for shops and licensees where information
can be shared.
6.5 It is this "working together" ethos that strives to drive down alcohol related crime and
disorder in Spalding town centre.
6.6 The primary aim of the town centre manager will be to drive forward the revitalisation of
Spalding town centre.This key person would promote the Safer Spalding concept by
fostering dialogue and communication between licensing retailers and partner agencies.The
town centre manager will ensure that retailers, agencies and other relevant parties work
together to deliver a vibrant,safe,accessible and sustainable town centre

7: Preventative measures
7.1

Intruder alarms

7.1.1 Alarms should be installed by an approved alarm installation company (see
http://www.securedbydesign.com/aware/alarms.aspx for installation advice)
7.1.2 Advice is available from the Police Crime Reduction officer
7.2

Closed Circuit Television CCTV:

7.2.1: A CCTV system shall be installed and maintained in working order and shall be used to
record during all hours authorised for licensable activities.

Page 71
Page 7

7.2.2 The CCTV system should record a frontal head and shoulder colour image of all persons
entering the premises.
7.2.3

The system should monitor and record all areas of the premises to which members of the
public are permitted access.

7.2.4 The monitor and recording equipment shall be located in a secure room or in a secure
cabinet to prevent unauthorised access, tampering or removal of images.
7.2.5

The quality of the images recorded by the CCTV system shall be such that they are of
practical value in the promotion of the licensing objectives by:
1)

Clearly showing actions of persons involved in an incident.

2)

Giving evidence of identity of offenders.

3)

Showing an overall view of the scene.

7.2.6

The images recorded by the CCTV system should be retained in an unedited form for a
period of not less than 31 days and be endorsed with the accurate time and date.

7.2.7

During all hours that the premises are open, a member of staff will be on the premises
who is capable of operating the system to review recordings and provide recorded footage
on a removable medium (eg: DVD)

7.2.8 Recordings shall be provided to Police or the Licensing Authority upon request. Officers
shall be permitted access to the system at any reasonable time.
7.2.9 As well as choosing the best location for your cameras, it is also important to consider the
angle of view and lighting conditions as the pictures below illustrate. Additional lighting
may need to be installed to achieve good quality images.

7.2.5 Home Office advice on CCTV for small businesses is available at
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cctv-supporting-small-businesses
Page 72
Page 8

7.3
7.3.1

Exclusion and banning policy
In addition to action taken by the police, sanctions taken by the licensing community,
such as banning notices are a powerful tool for encouraging violent or disruptive
customers to amend their behaviour.

7.3.2 All members of SAFER SPALDING should adopt a policy
where a person banned from one licensed premise is
excluded from all. In order to achieve this, there should
be an information sharing policy between businesses and
Lincolnshire Police.
7.3.3 Business Watch Scheme
This scheme is operated by the Lincolnshire Chamber of
Commerce. Licensees are encouraged to join this
existing scheme, which provides access to ‘Shopwatch
Radios’ and early warning or violent or disruptive
customers.

8 Responsible Retailing
8.1

Single Can Policy

8.1.1 Persistent street drinking is a recognised issue of concern for many residents of Spalding.
One of the ways that the Police combat this is by using their powers to seize alcohol within
the Designated Public Places Order (DPPO). A copy of the area covered by the DPPO is
at Appendix III
8.1.2 Persistent street drinkers attempt to minimise the impact of alcohol being seized from
them by purchasing single cans at a time. Thereby minimising their loss: when alcohol is
seized from them they simply buy another can.
8.1.3 Off-licence members of SAFER SPALDING should adopt the voluntary ‘no single can’
policy and refuse sales of single cans of alcohol to individuals. Refusals should be
recorded as per 4.2 above.
8.2

Discounted sales and selling below cost

8.2.1 From April 2014 there is a ban on the sale of alcohol below the cost of duty plus VAT. The
ban will prevent businesses from selling alcohol at heavily discounted prices and aims to
reduce excessive alcohol consumption and its associated impact on alcohol related crime
and health harms.
8.2.2 The ban is a new licensing condition of the Mandatory Code of Practice. The Mandatory
Code of Practice applies to all licensed premises in England and Wales.
8.2.3 The Premises Licence Holder, Designated Premises Supervisor or Personal Licence
Holder is responsible for ensuring that any responsible person takes all reasonable steps
to ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any
irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.
8.2.4 In this section, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the
sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises in a manner which carries a
significant risk of leading or contributing to crime and disorder, prejudice to public safety,
public nuisance, or harm to children. Page 73
Page 9

8.2.5 Non-compliance with the ban is likely to mean that the person who made the sale would
commit an offence under section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003. This carries a penalty (on
conviction) of up to 6 months’ imprisonment and/or a £20,000 fine. It may also result in the
licence being reviewed (on the basis of the crime prevention objective).
8.2.6 Guidance on methods of calculating the amount of duty plus VAT (referred to in legislation
as “the permitted price”) is available at
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/277201/Bel
owCostSalesAlcohol.pdf

8.3

Reducing the Strength

8.3.1 Off Licence owners in Spalding are being asked to become
Spalding “super heroes” by becoming” super strength free” and
removing these products from their shelves.
8.3.2 . Super strength alcohol, is all beers, lager and cider with an
alcohol volume of 6.5% or over, that is sold cheaply. This does
not include premium products.
8.3.3 The sale of these products is often linked to underage drinking,
crime anti social behaviour and community issues. It is hoped
that by reducing the quantity of super strength alcohol being
drunk in Spalding crime and disorder will also reduce
8.3.4 There are well documented links between excessive alcohol consumption and crime or
ASB. The consumption of super strength alcohol is often linked to ASB particularly antisocial drinking in public places ASB is defined as “acting in an anti-social manner that
caused or was likely to cause harassment, alarm or distress to one or more persons not of
the same household.”
8.3.5 Drinking super strength alcohol such as lager, beer or cider of more than 6.5% volume can
lead to significant health problems. If it abused, alcohol can do immense damage to the
body, both physically and mentally.
8.3.6 The negative impact associated with super–strength alcohol are significant for the
consumer and the wider community, but also for the public services who deal with the
consequences. By not stocking these products you will help to take the problems away at
the source.

8.4 Identify the products coming from your shop
8.4.1 There are a number of retailers selling alcoholic drinks though off sales in the town. It is a
good practice for all retailers to have some form of identity to help to locate the retailers who
are responsible as well as those who may need further guidance and training.
8.4.2 There are a number of methods you can use to increase the advertising of your business
though having each product you sell carry your company’s brand name.
 mark relevant selected products with a printed sticker, eg a price ticket
74 or carrier bags used
 provide your own logo on Page
the wrapping
Page 10

Full advice on this matter can be provided by your local Crime Prevention Officer , licensing
officer, community safety officer and Trading Standards team. All contacts are listed in the
appendix.
8.4.3 Displaying of valuable and high strength drinks
Spirits and high strength wines are examples of products which are common targets for
shoplifters. Frequently those who are already in drink and will have had further sales of
alcohol refused. Keep easily stolen products of this type behind the counter or where staff
have a clear view either by sight or covered by the internal CCTV system with the monitor
clearly visible by both staff and customers.
8.3.4 Visible impact
Should alcohol be stolen from your shop, particularly where this may have been by young
persons, it is likely that the person concerned will say that it was sold to them. This could
place you and your staff in difficult situations.
The ability of your staff to see what is going on in the street outside your shop will allow
them to stop likely proxy sales from taking place.
8.3.4.1 From outside
Many shops in our town centre are quite small and retailers are looking to maximise shelf
and display space. Do try to keep shelving which is against the inside of the shop front
window to no higher than waist height which will allow clear vision into your sales area
8.3.4.2 Inside the shop
Restrict centre shelving to allow for staff at the point of sale to see across the shop. Where
this is considered too restrictive. Make certain that the internal CCTV covers all vulnerable
parts of the shop.

9 Shop Front Guidance
Making and keeping South Holland’s towns and villages attractive places to live, work, shop and
visit is important to ensure that they remain vibrant and viable places both now and in the future.
Shop fronts, whether new or old, can enhance the appearance of an area if they are carefully
designed and detailed. On the other hand, poor quality shop front design can make buildings and
their surroundings appear unattractive and unwelcoming. This can also be the case where
careless or ill-conceived alterations are made to existing shop fronts.
9.1What do we want to see?
If we all work towards making South Holland’s market
places and high streets attractive places then it is
more likely that our local economy will thrive, just like
towns and cities elsewhere in the country which take
pride in the appearance of their shops and streets.
Planning permission is required if you want to alter the
appearance of the shop front, for instance if you want
change the position of the door or replace timber
window frames with UPVC.
The Shambles, York
Permission is not required to change the colour of a shop front, unless it is part of a listed
building. However, the use of bright, garish colours can look out of place on traditional shop
fronts or in historic areas such as the District’s conservation areas.

Page 75

Page 11

9.2 Signage
Signs and advertisements on shop fronts are important to the commercial success of both
individual businesses and our towns and villages generally, and can have a positive effect on the
appearance of an area. However, as with poor design or insensitive alteration of shop fronts,
poor quality signs can harm the appearance and character of an area and drive customers away.
Advertisement consent may be required for any new or replacement signage, depending on its
size, position, and whether it is illuminated or not. Separate listed building consent would also be
required if the sign would be fixed to a listed building.
9.3 Making Changes to shop front or signage
If you are considering making any changes to your property you should write to the Planning
Department at South Holland District Council explaining exactly what you would like to do, or you
can visit the Council offices and speak to the Duty Planning Officer between 9am – 1pm Monday
to Thursday. It will always help if you provide as much information as possible, for example
photographs of the existing building so you can show what changes you want to make.
Planning, advertisement consent and listed building consent forms can be downloaded from
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/environment/plandev/planning/applications/, or in person from the
Customer Service team at the Council offices.
9.4 Do’s and Don’ts
Do maintain the outside of your shop front regularly, keeping it clean and repainting when
necessary. A well maintained shop front gives a good impression and can help to attract
customers. There are added benefits to having clear windows as it allows customers and the
Police to see in and out of the shop thus improving feelings of safety.
Do use the main shop front windows as a display area for goods. An attractive window display
can help attract customers.
Don’t install new signs without checking with the Council whether advertisement consent is
required.
Don’t blank out shop front display windows with large vinyl advertisements or other items.
9.5 Having Pride in the Community
Litter: as a retailer you have a duty of care to your
customers to ensure the area both within and
around your shop is free from litter/ waste and
general detritus. If all retailers keep the area within
and around the shop clean this will help your
customers to feel safe and have a pleasurable
shopping experience. As a responsible retailer
you will be doing your bit to prevent crime and
disorder within the Community.
9.6 Parking:
By displaying appropriate signage deterring customers from parking directly outside of your shop
this will encourage a responsible customer attitude and improve the safety of the area in and
around your shop. We believe that with the support and active participation of off-licence
management and staff, we can work together to promote responsible behaviour and instil a
sense of pride within our community.

Page 76
Page 12

Appendix 1

Age Restricted Products
Product

Minimum age

Maximum Penalty

Alcohol

Over 18

£5,000 & forfeit of licence

Tobacco products including
cigarette papers

Over 18

£2,500

Lighter refills containing Butane

Over 18

£5,000 & up to 6 months imprisonment

Lottery tickets and Instant Win
Cards

Over 16

£5,000 & up to 2 years imprisonment

Fireworks

Over 18

£5,000 & up to 6 months imprisonment

Aerosol Spray Paints

Over 16

£2,500

Offensive weapons / knives

Over 18

£5,000 & up to 6 months imprisonment

Films, video and computer games
Classification: 12
15
18

£5000 & up to 6 months imprisonment
Over 12
Over 15
Over 18

Solvents/Intoxicating Substances

Over 18

£5,000 & up to 6 months imprisonment

Petrol

Over 16

£20,000 fine & up to 12 months
imprisonment

Page 77
Page 13

Appendix II
List of useful websites
www.wtsa.co.uk
The Wine and Spirits Trade Association website
Includes free downloads of Challenge 25 posters which you can print yourself and a guide
to Challenge 25.
www.noidnosale.com
Offers free resources to retailers, including posters, refusals registers Citizencard
application packs.
www.bii.org
The BII is the professional body for the licensed retail sector. Their website includes details
of a number of accredited training courses for staff and management in licensed trade, as
well as details of local course providers.
www.ash.org.uk
Information about tobacco and tobacco control
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/tradingstandards
lincolnshiretradingstandards
@lincsts
www. info@sholland.gov.uk
South Holland Licensing Authority gives advice on all licensing matters
http://www.sholland.gov.uk/environment/plandev/planning/applications/,
Planning, advertisement consent and listed building consent forms can be downloaded from or in
person from the Customer Service team at the Council offices.
http://www.securedbydesign.com/aware/alarms.aspx
Alarms should be installed by an approved alarm installation company (see for installation
advice)
chamberbusinesswatch@bt connect.com
Spalding Branch of Chamber of Trade able to offer advice and support on business matters
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/277201/BelowCost
SalesAlcohol.pdf
Guidance on methods of calculating the amount of duty plus VAT (referred to in legislation as
“the permitted price”)

Page 78
Page 14

Appendix III

Page 79
Page 15

Appendix IV
Safer Spalding
Voluntary Code of Practice to ensure responsible retailing of alcoholic products at all Off
Licences within Spalding Town Centre.
Safer Spalding has been introduced to improve standards, share good practice and support
traders with Off licences.
Code of Good Practice
As a responsible retailer I will:
•
Work together with other Off Licence members, the Licensing Authority, Lincolnshire
Police and other Responsible Authorities to create a Responsible Alcohol Retail Area
•
Not sell age restricted products to anyone I suspect of being under the legal age and will
display prominent notices about age restrictions
•
Not sell single cans of beer, lager or cider
•
Agree to ensure all alcoholic products shall be permanently marked with an identification
as to which premises it comes from
•
Adopt Challenge 25, always asking for proof of age, not selling when I have any doubt
and supporting the use of proof of age cards (PASS) scheme as a method of compliance
with the law
•
Train all staff in relation to age restricted products and keep a written record of the training
•
Not sell to adults suspected of buying on behalf of under-age persons or customers who
are already intoxicated
•
Help the Enforcement Authorities to become aware of people attempting to buy age
restricted products
•
Not display any advertisement on any window of any discounted alcohol for sale
Code of Good Practice for Enforcement Authorities
•
•
•
•

We will respond as actively as possible to your concerns about crime, disorder and antisocial behaviour caused by alcohol in your area
We will help to provide support and training or information on where training can be
sought for you and your staff
We will keep you up-to-date with changes in the law or best practice that might affect your
business
Complying with the code of practice means we will not normally need to inspect your
premises more than once every 18 months

Name of PremisesOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
Signature OOOOOOOOO..NameOOOOOOOOOOOOOODateOOOOOOOO
Position in CompanyOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

South Holland District Council

Signature

Name

DateOOOOOOOO..

Job TitleOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO.

Retailer’s copy

Page 80
Page 16

Safer Spalding
Voluntary Code of Practice to ensure responsible retailing of alcoholic products at all Off
Licences within Spalding Town Centre.
Safer Spalding has been introduced to improve standards, share good practice and support
traders with Off licences.
Code of Good Practice
As a responsible retailer I will:
•
Work together with other Off Licence members, the Licensing Authority, Lincolnshire
Police and other Responsible Authorities to create a Responsible Alcohol Retail Area
•
Not sell age restricted products to anyone I suspect of being under the legal age and will
display prominent notices about age restrictions
•
Not sell single cans of beer, lager or cider
• Agree to ensure all alcoholic products shall be permanently marked with an identification
as to which premises it comes from
• Adopt Challenge 25, always asking for proof of age, not selling when I have any doubt
and supporting the use of proof of age cards (PASS) scheme as a method of compliance
with the law
•
Train all staff in relation to age restricted products and keep a written record of the training
•
Not sell to adults suspected of buying on behalf of under-age persons or customers who
are already intoxicated
•
Help the Enforcement Authorities to become aware of people attempting to buy age
restricted products
•
Not display any advertisement on any window of any discounted alcohol for sale
Code of Good Practice for Enforcement Authorities
•
•
•
•

We will respond as actively as possible to your concerns about crime, disorder and antisocial behaviour caused by alcohol in your area
We will help to provide support and training or information on where training can be sought
for you and your staff
We will keep you up-to-date with changes in the law or best practice that might affect your
business
Complying with the code of practice means we will not normally need to inspect your
premises more than once every 18 months

Name of PremisesOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
Signature OOOOOOOOO..NameOOOOOOOOOOOOOODateOOOOOOOO
Position in CompanyOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

South Holland District Council

Signature

Name

DateOOOOOOOO..

Job TitleOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO.

Licensing Authority copy

Page 81
Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82

